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1 나이가 어떻게 되죠? 

8   쭉쭉 읽어라

We know the names of five people: Mr. Green, Ms. White, Mrs. Brown, 
Mr. Black, and Miss Grey. We know their ages: 20, 25, 30, 65, and 70. But 
we do not know the age of each person. We must find out the age of each 
person. These are the hints.

 • The youngest person is a man.
 • Mr. Green is older than Mr. Black.
 • The oldest of them is not a woman.
 • Ms. White stopped work when she was sixty.
 • The youngest woman is not married.

1. 윗글을 읽고, 각 사람의 알맞은 나이에 ∨표 하시오.  

name / age  20 25 30 65  70

Mr. Green 
Ms. White

Mrs. Brown

Mr. Black

Miss Grey

We know / the names / of five people: / Mr. Green, Ms. White, Mrs. 

Brown, Mr. Black, and Miss Grey. 

We know / their ages: / 20, 25, 30, 65, and 70. 

But / we do not know / the age / of each person. 

We must find out / the age / of each person. These are / the hints.

• The youngest person is / a man.

• Mr. Green is / older / than Mr. Black.

• The oldest / of them / is not / a woman.

• Ms. White stopped / work / when / she was / sixty.

• The youngest woman is not / married.

우리는 안다         이름들을              다섯 사람들의                 그린 씨,             화이트 씨, 

브라운 부인, 블랙 씨,         그리고 그레이 씨              

우리는 안다       그들의 나이들을   20, 25, 30, 65,       그리고 70     

그러나  우리는 알지 못한다          나이를         각 사람의          

우리는 알아내야 한다         나이를         각 사람의                  이것들이 ~이다  힌트들

   

   가장 젊은 사람은 ~이다                 남자

   그린 씨는 ~이다      더 나이 든  블랙 씨보다

   가장 나이 든 (사람은) 그들 중에서  ~ 아니다  여자가

   화이트 씨는 그만두었다          일을       ~일 때     그녀가 ~이었을  예순 

   가장 젊은 여자는 ~ 아니다                     결혼한 

2. something 어떤 것  

    say 말하다  
direct 직접적인  
way 방법

2. 다음 영어 설명에 해당하는 단어를 윗글에서 찾아 원형으로 쓰시오. 

   something that you say, but not in a direct way
  
    → 

정답과 해설 p. 3

영어가 어렵니?

문법 따지며 앞뒤로 왔다갔다 하면서 읽어서 그래.

이렇게 끊어 읽으면 쉬워. 

비전출판사
입력 텍스트

비전출판사
입력 텍스트

비전출판사
입력 텍스트

비전출판사
입력 텍스트

비전출판사
입력 텍스트

비전출판사
입력 텍스트
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The President of America lives in the White House. Before the war of 
1812, people called it “the President’s House.”

(A) Later, people painted the house white. 
(B) They then began to call it “the White House.”	
(C) But during the war the Englishmen burned it, and it became black. 

The President / of America / lives / in the White House.

Before the war / of 1812, / people called / it / “the President’s House.”

Later, / people painted / the house / white.

They / then began / to call / it / “the White House.”		

But / during the war / the Englishmen burned / it, / and / it became / 

black. 

대통령은                  미국의                산다       백악관에   

전쟁 이전에                 1812년의       사람들은 불렀다        그것을  ‘대통령의 집’이라고

나중에      사람들은 색칠했다        그 집을             하얀색으로

그들은     그때 시작했다      부르기를    그것을  ‘하얀 집(백악관)’이라고		

그러나  그 전쟁 동안               영국인들이 태웠다                        그것을  그래서  그것은 ~ 되어 버렸다  

까맣게 
1. 주어진 문장에 이어질 글의 순서로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ①  (A) - (B) - (C)       		   	 ②  (A) - (C) - (B)
   ③  (B) - (A) - (C)   		   	 ④  (B) - (C) - (A)
   ⑤  (C) - (A) - (B) 
     
2. 사람들이 대통령이 사는 집을 the White House라고 부르기 시작한 이유는? 

   ① 검게 탄 집을 흰색으로 칠해서  		  ② 대통령이 청렴하기를 바라서 

   ③ 원래 대통령의 집은 흰색으로 칠해서	 ④ 영국인들이 그렇게 불러서

   ⑤ 초대 대통령이 흰색을 좋아해서

정답과 해설 p. 3

2 미국 대통령의 집  

끊어 읽으면 쉽다고 했지?

그런데 어떻게 끊어 읽을까?

‘한 번에 생각하기 편한 만큼’씩 끊어 읽으면 돼.
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A little boy was at the beach with his parents. He was playing near the 
water. The water was over the boy’s head! Mrs. Blaise saw the boy. She 
picked up the boy. She carried him to his parents. They gave thanks to 
her for saving their son. Ten years later, the boy was at the same beach. 
He was 14 years old now. He was a good swimmer. He saw a man in the 
water. The man couldn’t swim. He cried out for help. The boy saved him 
from the water. The man’s name was Mr. Blaise. He was Mrs. Blaise’s 
husband. 

1. 밑줄 친 The water was over the boy’s head!가 의미하는 바로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① The boy was a good swimmer.
   ② The boy liked the water very much.
   ③ The boy could not swim in deep water. 
   ④ There were too many people at the beach.
   ⑤ The waves came very often near the beach.

2. 윗글과 어울리는 속담으로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① 끼리끼리 모인다.        		   

   ② 뿌린 대로 거둔다. 

   ③ 티끌 모아 태산이다.     		   

   ④ 선으로 악을 갚아라.

   ⑤ 천릿길도 한 걸음부터.

			   정답과 해설 p. 4

3 소년이 구한 남자

한 어린 소년이 있었다     해변에                  그의 부모와 함께                

그는 놀고 있었다            물 근처에서                 

물이 ~이었다              그 소년의 머리를 넘은           블레이즈 부인이 보았다     그 소년을    

그녀는 들어올렸다       그 소년을    그녀는 데려갔다     그를     그의 부모에게         

그들은 표했다      감사를       그녀에게    그들의 아들을 구해 준 것에 대하여   

10년이 지난 후             그 소년이 있었다     같은 해변에                            

그는 ~이었다  열네 살              이제    그는 ~이었다  수영을 잘하는 사람                          

그는 보았다   한 남자를   물속에 있는          그 남자는 수영을 할 줄 몰랐다          

그는  크게 소리쳤다  도움을 청하려고 

그 소년은 구해 주었다   그를      물에서                         

그 남자의 이름은 ~이었다          블레이즈 씨       그는 ~이었다  블레이즈 부인의 남편  

A little boy was / at the beach / with his parents. 

He was playing / near the water. 

The water was / over the boy’s head! Mrs. Blaise saw / the boy. 

She picked up / the boy. She carried / him / to his parents. 

They gave / thanks / to her / for saving their son. 

Ten years later, / the boy was / at the same beach. 

He was / 14 years old / now. He was / a good swimmer. 

He saw / a man / in the water. The man couldn’t swim. 

He cried out / for help. 

The boy saved / him / from the water. 

The man’s name was / Mr. Blaise. He was / Mrs. Blaise’s husband. 

‘한 번에 생각하기 편한 만큼’씩 끊어 읽는다고 했지?

이것을 ‘생각 단위’라고 해.

‘생각 단위’에는 정답이 없어.

위에서처럼 He was / a good swimmer.로 끊어 읽을 수도 있지만

끊지 않고 He was a good swimmer.로 읽을 수도 있어.
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A walking stick is a bug. But it looks like a stick. So it got its name, 
walking stick. A walking stick likes to eat leaves. It is safe in a tree 
because it looks like a twig of the tree. Other animals don’t see it. A 
walking stick can also change color. It is green in the spring. In the fall, it 
is brown. This bug can hide itself very well.

*walking stick 대벌레 

twig 잔가지

1. walking stick에 대한 윗글의 내용과 일치하지 않는 것은? 

   ① It looks like a stick.
   ② It likes to eat leaves.
   ③ It cannot see well. 
   ④ It can change its color.
   ⑤ It can hide itself very well.

2. What will a walking stick do when an animal comes near?

   ① It will change its shape. 
   ② It will walk to the stick.
   ③ It will fly away to other trees.
   ④ It will stay there without moving. 
   ⑤ It will keep moving and eating leaves.

정답과 해설 p. 5

4 희한하게 생긴 벌레

2. shape 모양 
    fly away 날아가다  
    stay 머물다 

without ~없이 
move 움직이다 
keep -ing 계속 ~하다  

대벌레는 ~이다                  벌레        하지만  그것은 보인다  막대기처럼  

그래서  그것은 얻었다  그 이름을  걸어 다니는 막대기(대벌레)라는  

대벌레는 좋아한다                    나뭇잎 먹는 것을        

그것은 ~이다  안전한  나무에서  왜냐하면      그것은 보이기 (때문이다)  잔가지처럼  나무의        

다른 동물들은 보지 못한다               그것을 

대벌레는                      또한 바꿀 수 있다           색깔을 

그것은 ~이다  녹색   봄에                 가을에              그것은 ~이다  갈색                                                                                                                                    

이 벌레는 감출 수 있다        자기 자신을  아주 훌륭하게

A walking stick is / a bug. But / it looks / like a stick. 

So / it got / its name, / walking stick. 

A walking stick likes / to eat leaves. 

It is / safe / in a tree / because / it looks / like a twig / of the tree.

Other animals don’t see / it. 

A walking stick / can also change / color. 

It is / green / in the spring. In the fall, / it is / brown. 

This bug can hide / itself / very well.
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Do you like going fast? Well, how about snow? Yes! Then snowboarding 
is the sport for you. Snowboarding is like skateboarding on snow because 
a snowboard is shaped like a skateboard. But it is longer and wider and it 
doesn t̓ have wheels. So the board is more like a surfboard. Surfboards are 
long and wide, too. But snowboarding is               from skateboarding and 
surfing in one way. Your feet are not free. They cannot move. They are 
fixed to the board. Then you cannot easily fall off the board.

Snowboarders go fast. They sometimes f ly through the air! So 
snowboarders wear safety equipment. Most wear wrist guards and knee 
pads because they often land on their hands and knees. And they wear a 
helmet. It protects their head when they fall. 

*wrist guard 팔목 보호대  knee pad 무릎 보호대

1. 윗글의 내용과 일치하지 않는 것은?  

   ① 스케이트보드와 스노보드는 비슷하게 생겼다.        		   

   ② 스케이트보드와 스노보드는 크기가 같다. 

   ③ 스노보드는 발이 보드에 고정된다.     		   

   ④ 스노보드를 탈 때는 보호 장비를 착용한다.

   ⑤ 스노보드를 타면 종종 넘어진다.

정답과 해설 p. 6

5 스노보딩, 어디까지 아니?

snowboarding 스노보드 타기 
like 좋아하다; ~ 같은  
skateboarding 스케이트보드 타기  

shaped ~의 모양의 

wide 넓은  
wheel 바퀴  
board 판(자)  
more 더 많이  

surfboard 서핑 보드  

in one way 한 가지 면에서  

feet foot(발)의 복수형  
fixed to ~에 움직이지 않게 고정된  

easily 쉽게  
fall off ~에서 떨어지다  
through 통과하여  
wear 착용하다  

safety equipment 안전 장비  
land 떨어지다  
on one’s hands and knees 무릎 

꿇고, 기어서  
helmet 헬멧 
protect 보호하다  
fall 넘어지다, 떨어지다

2. 윗글의 빈칸에 가장 적절한 단어를 주어진 철자로 시작하여 쓰시오. 

   → d

3. 밑줄 친 free와 같은 의미로 쓰인 것은? 

   ① The drinks are all free.
   ② I’m free tomorrow.
   ③ Excuse me, is this seat free? 
   ④ You are free to leave.
   ⑤ My hands are free now. 

정답과 해설 p. 6

영어에서 ‘직독직해’만큼 중요한 습관은 없어. 

계속 하다 보면 저절로 영어가 쉬워진다니까.
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My dream party is coming true. 
When I was a little girl, 

I imagined having a wonderful 16th birthday party. 
But it won’t be magical, 

if you’re not there. 
So please come to my special day.

Saturday, June 22nd at 2 p.m. – 5 p.m.
Green Country Club 

777 Lime Street
RSVP 012-3456-7890

by June 15th 

*RSVP 회답 주시기 바랍니다  

1. 윗글의 종류로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① letter		  ② fairy tale	     	 ③ invitation 	  

   ④ notice		  ⑤ speech
	

2. 윗글의 내용과 일치하지 않는 것은?

   ① 글쓴이는 소녀이다.		

   ② 글쓴이는 16세가 된다.

   ③ 6월 22일에 열린다.		

   ④ 마술 공연을 한다.   

   ⑤ 주말에 한다.

정답과 해설 p. 7

6 꿈이 이루어지다

1. fairy tale 동화

    invitation 초대장 
    

notice 안내문  
speech 연설문

                                      나의 꿈과 같은 파티는 ~이다  실현되고 있는

                                            ~ 일 때    내가 ~이었을  어린 소녀     

                   나는 상상했다      가지기를      멋진 16세 생일 파티를

                      그러나  그것은 ~ 아닐 것이다  아주 멋진   만약  네가 ~있지 않다(면)  거기에

                                   그러니  제발 와 줘           내 특별한 날에

                               토요일             6월 22일           오후 2시 ~ 5시에

                                                  그린 컨트리클럽

                                                      777 라임 거리

                                                 012-3456-7890으로 회답 요망

                                                         6월 15일까지

My dream party is / coming true. 

When / I was / a little girl, /

I imagined / having / a wonderful 16th birthday party. 

But / it won’t be / magical, / if / you’re not / there. 

So / please come / to my special day.

Saturday, / June 22nd / at 2 p.m. ‒ 5 p.m.

Green Country Club 

777 Lime Street

RSVP 012-3456-7890

by June 15th
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Do you like tomatoes? Did you know that at one time almost everyone in 
the United States thought they were poisonous? People grew tomatoes in 
their gardens only because their fruit were pretty. 

There is a story. One day a man took some tomatoes to town and offered 
them to the people. No one would touch them. So the man ate them all 
up. He did not die. The news spread. It helped people change their minds 
about                 .

*poisonous 독이 든

1. 사람들이 토마토를 재배한 이유를 우리말로 쓰시오.

 
   →  	

2. 밑줄 친 The news를 구체적으로 설명한 것은?

   ① 누구에게나 토마토를 공짜로 나누어 준다는 약속

   ② 한 사람이 토마토를 다 먹어 버렸다는 사실

   ③ 토마토를 먹은 사람이 죽지 않고 멀쩡하다는 사실 

   ④ 토마토에 독이 있다는 것은 누구나 알고 있다는 사실

   ⑤ 토마토를 잘 키우면 돈을 벌 수 있다는 사실

3. 윗글의 빈칸에 들어갈 말로 가장 적절한 것은?

	
   ① gardens  		  ② poison			   ③ tomatoes 
   ④ the man			  ⑤ the story  

정답과 해설 p. 8

7 토마토에 독이 들었다고? 

          

당신은 알고 있었는가    ~라는 것을  한때에          거의 모든 사람이             미국에 있는          

생각했다       그것들이 있었다   독성이 있(다고)

사람들은 길렀다       토마토를         그들의 정원에서             단지 ~ 때문에        

그것들의 열매가 ~이었기 (때문에)  예쁜 

      

어느 날         한 남자가 가져갔다  약간의 토마토를           마을로         그리고 제공했다     그것들을        

사람들에게            아무도         만지려 하지 않았다   그것들을   

그래서  그 남자는 먹었다   그것들을  몽땅      

      

그것은 도와주었다  사람들이  바꾸도록    그들의 생각을                     에 관한 

Do you like / tomatoes? 

Did you know / that / at one time / almost everyone / in the United States / 

thought / they were / poisonous? 

People grew / tomatoes / in their gardens / only because / 

their fruit were / pretty. 

There is / a story. 

One day / a man took / some tomatoes / to town / and offered / them / 

to the people. No one / would touch / them. 

So / the man ate / them / all up. 

He did not die. The news spread. 

It helped / people / change / their minds / about                     .

tomato 토마토

die 죽다 
news 소식 
spread 퍼지다, 퍼뜨리다(spread-spread) 

3. poison 독

직독직해하는 습관을 들이려면 직접 해봐야겠지?

빈 곳에 해석을 써 넣으며 조금씩 해 봐.
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Corn grows on a corn farm. Wheat grows on a wheat farm. But what 
grows on a wind farm? Wind farms have very large windmills. ( ⓐ ) These 
windmills have arms and the arms catch the wind. ( ⓑ ) When the wind 
catches the arms, the arms turn. ( ⓒ ) The machine makes electricity. ( ⓓ ) 
You can find windmills in places with a lot of wind. ( ⓔ ) The wind keeps 
the arms of the windmills turning almost all the time. 

1. 윗글의 흐름으로 보아 주어진 문장이 들어가기에 가장 적절한 곳은?

   The arms make a machine move.

 
   ① ⓐ      	  ② ⓑ     	 ③ ⓒ     	  ④ ⓓ   	   ⑤ ⓔ

2. 밑줄 친 But what grows on a wind farm?에 대한 답을 윗글에서 찾아 

   한 단어로 쓰시오.

   → 

3. 윗글의 제목으로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① Catch the Strong Wind 
   ② The Arms of Windmills
   ③ Electricity: Clean Energy
   ④ Electricity on Wind Farms 
   ⑤ A Corn Farm and a Wheat Farm

정답과 해설 p. 10

8 무엇이 전기를 만들지? 

 

~할 때      바람이 붙잡을 (때)           팔들을             팔들은 돌아간다 

바람은 유지하게 한다        풍차의 팔들이                                   돌아가도록     거의           

항상

Corn grows / on a corn farm. Wheat grows / on a wheat farm. 

But / what grows / on a wind farm? Wind farms have / very large windmills. 

These windmills have / arms / and / the arms catch / the wind. 

When / the wind catches / the arms, / the arms turn. 

The machine makes / electricity. 

You can find / windmills / in places / with a lot of wind.

The wind keeps / the arms of the windmills / turning / almost / 

all the time. 

corn 옥수수 
grow 자라다 
farm 농장

wheat 밀 
wind 바람 
 

windmill 풍차 
arm 팔 
catch 붙잡다 
machine 기계 
electricity 전기 

    place 장소, 곳 

1. move 움직이다
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A teacher told the class to write a composition about a baseball game. All 
the students wrote busily, but one small boy did not. When the time was 
up, he suddenly took up his pen. And then he wrote a line and gave it to 
the teacher. What did he write on the paper? The teacher wanted to know. 
He found only a few words on the paper. It read “Rain. No game.”

*composition 작문

   

1. 밑줄 친 “Rain. No game.”을 통해 소년에 대하여 짐작할 수 있는 것으로 

   가장 적절한 것은?

   ① 진지하고 사색적이다. 

   ② 재치있다. 

   ③ 야구를 좋아한다.

   ④ 학습 태도가 좋다. 

   ⑤ 친구들과 잘 어울리지 못한다.

 

2. 이 일을 겪고 난 뒤 선생님이 느낄 심경으로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① 흐뭇하다			    ② 느긋하다			   ③ 섭섭하다   		

   ④ 초조하다			    ⑤ 황당하다 

정답과 해설 p. 11

9 비가 와서 경기를 못 한다고? 

모든 학생이                  글을 썼다   바쁘게        하지만  한 작은 소년은           하지 않았다    

~할 때     시간이           다 되었을 (때)  그는  갑자기 집어 들었다           그의 펜을         

무엇을     그는 썼는가            종이 위에             

그는 발견했다    불과 몇 안 되는 단어들을    종이 위에서               

그것에는 적혀 있었다  비 내림  경기 없음   

A teacher told / the class / to write / a composition / 

about a baseball game. 

All the students / wrote / busily, / but / one small boy / did not. 

When / the time / was up, / he / suddenly took up / his pen. 

And then / he wrote / a line / and gave / it / to the teacher. 

What / did he write / on the paper? The teacher / wanted / to know. 

He found / only a few words / on the paper. 

It read / “Rain. / No game.”

tell 말하다(tell-told) 
class 학급 
write 쓰다 
baseball 야구 

game 시합, 경기

line 줄 

쭉쭉 읽으면?

생각하는 속도가 빨라져.

그만큼 글을 이해하는 속도가 빨라지지.
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Virtual reality programs are being developed for many uses. One future 
use is operating on sick people. The doctor is in one place; the patient 
is in another. But the doctor operates with a VR program and special 
equipment. 

Another use is creating real-size virtual model of buildings. Architects 
can design better buildings. City planners can design better cities. These 
uses will help people work. 

But there will be other uses, too. How about visiting a foreign country 
while lying on your couch? Or how about shopping in a store while lying 
on your bed? These VR programs will be very good. It will seem very 
real. We might not remember which world we are in. 

*virtual reality 가상현실 

10 꿈이야 현실이야

develop 개발하다  

use 용도  
future 미래의  

operate on ~을 수술하다   

patient 환자  

another 다른  

equipment 장비  
create 창조하다, 만들다  

real-size 실제 크기의  

virtual model 가상 모델  

architect 설계자  

design 설계하다    
city planner 도시 계획가   
foreign country 외국  
while ~하는 동안  
lie 눕다(lie; lying)  

couch 긴 의자  
shop 쇼핑하다, 물건을 사다 
(shop; shopping)   
seem (~인 것처럼) 보이다  
real 진짜 같은 
might ~일지도 모른다   

1. developer 개발자  
2. complain 항의하다  

    warn 경고하다  
    advise 충고하다             

    request 요구하다  

    inform 알리다  

1. 윗글의 주제로 가장 적절한 것은? 

   ① developers of virtual reality programs  
   ② uses of virtual reality programs 
   ③ virtual reality shopping 
   ④ how to use virtual reality equipment    
   ⑤ virtual reality programs for doctors

2. 윗글을 쓴 목적으로 가장 적절한 것은? 

   ① to complain     		   ② to warn      		  ③ to advise              
   ④ to request       		    ⑤ to inform 

3. 가상현실 프로그램에 대한 윗글의 내용과 일치하지 않는 것은? (2개)

   ① 주된 용도는 게임이다. 

   ② 원격 수술 프로그램도 있다.

   ③ 도시 설계에 도움이 될 것이다. 

   ④ 집에서 해외여행을 할 수 있다.

   ⑤ 미래 세계를 체험할 수 있다. 

정답과 해설 p. 12
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I was going hiking in the Rocky Mountains, Yay! I was going with my 
aunt. I thought I would have the trip of a lifetime. But on one hike, my life 
almost ended. 

I turned a corner in the trail and looked up. I was face-to-face with a 
mother elk and her baby. It was huge and looked angry. She put her head 
down and kicked the ground. I thought the mother was going to attack me. 
I was scared of her. She wanted to protect her baby, I guess. My heart beat 
very fast! I walked slowly backwards. Finally, I couldn’t see them and I 
relaxed. Now I understand that hiking alone can be                  . 

*trail 오솔길  

1. I 에 대한 윗글의 내용과 일치하지 않는 것은? 

   ① I was excited about the trip.
   ② I looked the mother elk in the eyes.
   ③ I was afraid of the mother elk.
   ④ The mother elk didn’t attack me. 
   ⑤ I ran fast until I couldn’t see the elks. 

2. 윗글의 빈칸에 들어갈 말로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① dangerous  		   ② exciting	 	 	 ③ peaceful
   ④ tiring			    ⑤ wonderful 

정답과 해설 p. 13

11 하이킹에서 생긴 일

1. excited 흥분한  
    be afraid of ~을 두려워하다  

2. dangerous 위험한 
    exciting 흥미진진한  

peaceful 평화적인  
tiring 피곤하게 만드는  

wonderful 아주 멋진

나는 도보 여행을 갈 예정이었다    로키 산맥에서                            야호  

나는 갈 예정이었다  이모와 함께                

나는 생각했다   내가 할 거라고          여행을         평생 남을 만한           

하지만  한 번의 도보 여행에  내 인생이     거의 끝날 뻔했다 

나는 돌았다    모퉁이를       오솔길에서          그리고 시선을 들었다   

나는 ~이었다   마주한            어미 엘크하고 새끼 엘크와                   

그것(어미 엘크)은 ~이었다   몸집이 거대한  그리고 보였다  화나

그 녀석은 두었다  (자신의) 머리를  아래쪽으로  그리고 찼다  땅을                    

나는 생각했다   어미 (엘크)가       공격할 것이라고                     나를    

나는 ~이었다  겁먹은  어미 엘크에게  어미 엘크는 원했다  보호하기를  자기 새끼를      내가 짐작하기로는

내 심장이 뛰었다        몹시 빠르게     나는 걸었다     천천히 뒤쪽으로 물러나며             

마침내          나는 볼 수 없었다      그것들을  그리고   나는 안심했다    

이제       나는 알고 있다         ~라는 것을   혼자 도보 여행을 가는 것이   ~일 수 있다(는 것을)              할

I was going hiking / in the Rocky Mountains, / Yay! 

I was going / with my aunt. 

I thought / I would have / the trip / of a lifetime. 

But / on one hike, / my life / almost ended. 

I turned / a corner / in the trail / and looked up. 

I was / face-to-face / with a mother elk and her baby. 

It was / huge / and looked / angry. 

She put / her head / down / and kicked / the ground. 

I thought / the mother / was going to attack / me. 

I was / scared / of her. She wanted / to protect / her baby, / I guess. 

My heart beat / very fast! I walked / slowly backwards. 

Finally, / I couldn’t see / them / and / I relaxed. 

Now / I understand / that / hiking alone / can be /                  . 
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A princess was born in the year 1200 in China. Her feet were very, very 
small. Her father, the king, didn’t want her to be sad because he loved his 
daughter. So he made a new law. This law said that all the baby girls must 
have small feet. So people had to wrap their babies’ feet very tightly with 
pieces of cloth. Then their feet would stay small like                  . 	

1. 윗글의 빈칸에 들어갈 말로 가장 적절한 것은? 

   ① theirs       ② his     	 ③ yours     	  ④ hers       	⑤ mine

2. The king made a new law because                                  .

   ① he was very sad
   ② he liked small feet
   ③ he didn’t want his daughter to be sad 
   ④ his daughter wanted it
   ⑤ his daughter was pretty

정답과 해설 p. 14

12 공주님은 발이 작다? 

한 공주가 태어났다                   1200년에                      중국에서       

   

그녀의 아버지는    왕이었던          원하지 않았다        그녀가   슬퍼하는 것을    왜냐하면        그는 사랑했기(때문에)

그의 딸을   

   

이 법은 말했다           ~이라고    모든 여자 아기는         가져야 한다(고)    작은 발을         

그래서   사람들은   감싸야 했다           그들의 아기들의 발을         아주 단단하게        천 조각을 가지고             

           그러면     그들의 발은 남아 있을 것이다     작은 상태로                 처럼

A princess was born / in the year 1200 / in China. 

Her feet were / very, very small. 

Her father, / the king, / didn’t want / her / to be sad / because / he loved / 

his daughter. 

So / he made / a new law. 

This law said / that / all the baby girls / must have / small feet. 

So / people / had to wrap / their babies’ feet / very tightly / with pieces of 

cloth. Then / their feet would stay / small / like                  . 	

무턱대고 읽지 않고 이렇게 끊어 읽으니까 훨씬 쉽지?

빈 곳에 해석을 써 넣으며 계속 연습해 봐.

영어가 훨씬 쉬워져. 
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We have some wrong ideas about pigs. Many people think that pigs eat 
too much. But pigs do not eat too much. When they are full, pigs stop 
eating. Cows and horses keep on eating, even when they are full. ⓐThey 
sometimes eat until they get sick. Some people believe that pigs like to be 
dirty. But ⓑthat is not true, either. Pigs only sweat through their noses. 
Rolling in mud helps pigs to cool off.

1. 밑줄 친 ⓐThey와 ⓑthat이 가리키는 것을 각각 영어로 쓰시오.

 
   → ⓐ , ⓑ

2. 윗글의 전체 내용을 가장 잘 나타낸 문장은?

   ① We have some wrong ideas about pigs. 
   ② Many people think that pigs eat too much.
   ③ Pigs do not eat too much.
   ④ Some people believe that pigs like to be dirty.
   ⑤ Rolling in mud helps pigs to cool off.

정답과 해설 p. 15

13 돼지는 억울해 

많은 사람들이 생각한다          ~이라고   돼지가 먹는다(고)  너무 많이     

                                                              

~할 때      그들이 배가 부를 (때)    돼지들은 멈춘다  먹는 것을   

젖소들과 말들은               계속 먹는다                 심지어     ~할 때     그들이 배가 부를 (때)        

그들은     가끔 먹는다                ~할 때까지   그들이 아플 (때까지)

    

                                                                                          

뒹구는 것은   진흙 속에서   도와준다  돼지들이  열을 식히도록

We have / some wrong ideas / about pigs. 

Many people think / that / pigs eat / too much. 

But / pigs do not eat / too much. 

When / they are full, / pigs stop / eating. 

Cows and horses / keep on eating, / even / when / they are full. 

They / sometimes eat / until / they get sick. 

Some people believe / that / pigs like / to be dirty. 

But / that is not / true, / either. Pigs only sweat / through their noses. 

Rolling / in mud / helps / pigs / to cool off.

wrong 잘못된 
idea 생각 
pig 돼지 
believe 믿다 

dirty 더러운 
true 진실된 
either (부정문에서) ~도 또한, 역시  
sweat 땀을 흘리다 
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Many people wear cowboy hats today. They like the style of the hats. 
But years ago, a cowboy really used his hat. The cowboy drank water 
from his hat. He used it to carry water to his horse. He waved his hat at 
cows to make them move faster. Most of all, the cowboy needed his hat 
to keep the sun and wind off his head. A hat was one of the most useful 
things to                     .

1. 윗글의 빈칸에 들어갈 말로 가장 적절한 것은? 

   ① horses      ② cows      ③ cowboys       ④ people      ⑤ farmers

2. 윗글의 제목으로 가장 적절한 것은? 

   ① Nice Look of the Hat 
   ② Many People with Hats
   ③ The Most Useful Thing
   ④ The Cowboy’s Useful Hat 
   ⑤ Drinking from a Cowboy Hat

정답과 해설 p. 17

14 카우보이 모자는 멋있어 

무엇보다 우선        카우보이는 필요했다               그의 모자가  지키기 위하여   태양과 바람이  

그의 머리에서 벗어나도록

Many people wear / cowboy hats / today. 

They like / the style / of the hats. 

But / years ago, / a cowboy / really used / his hat. 

The cowboy drank / water / from his hat. 

He used / it / to carry water / to his horse. 

He waved / his hat / at cows / to make them / move faster. 

Most of all, / the cowboy needed / his hat / to keep / the sun and wind / 

off his head. 

A hat was / one / of the most useful things /  to               .

wear 착용하다(wear-wore) 
cowboy 카우보이, 소몰이 목동 
hat 모자 
today 오늘날 
style 모양 

drink 마시다(drink-drank) 
carry 나르다 
wave 흔들다 
move 움직이다 
fast 빠르게; 빠른

useful 유용한

1. farmer 농부

영어는 눈치 빠른 사람이 잘한다는 것 아니?

쭉쭉 직독직해하면?

내용이 쉽게 짐작되니까 영어를 잘할 수밖에!
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THE DRONE CAMP
July 8th – July12th (Monday to Friday) 
When: 9:00 A.M. – 12:00 P.M.
Who: Ages 10 – 13
Where: Green Hill Elementary School
Camp Fee: $55.00

Camp Details
- This interesting camp introduces campers to the world of drones. 
- Kids will learn how to operate many different drones and how to care for    
   them. 
- They will then fly two types of drones! 
- Finally, they will learn all the ways drones will help people.
- The camp leaders are Mr. Dan Murphy, a drone expert, and Ms. Liz 
   Stevens, a science teacher.

15 드론을 날려보자

drone 드론    
A.M. 오전(= a.m.)  
P.M. 오후(= p.m.)  
age 나이   

elementary school 초
등학교  
fee 요금  

detail 세부 사항     

introduce 소개하다  

camper 캠프 참가자    
learn 배우다  
how 방법, 어떻게  

operate 작동하다 
care for 다루다

fly 날리다  
type 종류  
finally 마지막으로 

all the ways 모든 방법들  

leader 지도자 

expert 전문가 
science 과학  

3. aged ~세의  
    take part in 참여하다

1. Drone Camp에 대한 윗글의 내용과 일치하지 않는 것은? 

   ① 주중에 열린다.				  

   ② 유료 캠프이다.

   ③ 참가자는 드론 만드는 법을 배운다. 

   ④ 두 종류의 드론을 날리는 체험이 예정되어 있다.

   ⑤ 지도를 맡은 사람은 두 명이다.

2. 캠프에 참가하기 위해 지불해야 할 비용은 얼마인지 쓰시오.

   → 

3. 윗글로 보아, 밑줄 친 ⓐ~ⓔ 중 정보가 잘못된 것은? 

   ⓐKids aged from 10-13 can ⓑtake part in the Drone Camp ⓒat Green    
   Hill Elementary School ⓓfrom nine to noon, from July 8th ⓔfor four
   days.

   ① ⓐ	          ② ⓑ	          ③ ⓒ	         ④ ⓓ 	         ⑤ ⓔ  

정답과 해설 p. 18
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You may not believe this sneezing story. A man didn’t want to sneeze so 
he pinched his nose with his fingers. Then he closed his mouth. He didn’t 
sneeze, but he heard a loud pop. His neck hurt and he could not speak. It 
was also painful to eat.

He immediately went to the doctor. The doctor gave him some bad news. 
A muscle in his throat was broken. He stayed in the hospital for seven 
days. He had to eat with a tube because he could not eat properly. He 
should have sneezed! 

1. 밑줄 친 A man에 대한 윗글의 내용과 일치하지 않는 것은? 

   ① He tried not to sneeze.
   ② His neck was not painful.
   ③ He could not speak.
   ④ He couldn’t eat properly because of the throat pain.
   ⑤ He had a broken muscle in his throat.

2. What did the man do not to sneeze?

   → 

정답과 해설 p. 19

16 재채기를 참으면? 

여러분은 믿지 않을지도 모른다    이 재채기 이야기를                    

한 남자가 원치 않았다           재채기하기를     그래서  그는 꼭 집었다   자신의 코를    

(그의) 손가락으로        그다음     그는 닫았다      그의 입을           

그는 재채기를 하지 않았다   하지만  그는 들었다    커다란 펑 하는 소리를 

그의 목이 아팠다       그리고   그는 말을 할 수 없었다        

~이었다    또한 고통스러운      먹는 것은   

그는    즉시 갔다                        진료를 받으러                

의사는 전했다                그에게   나쁜 소식을                   

근육이             그의 목 안의          찢어졌다            

그는 입원했다     병원에                      7일간                         

그는 먹어야 했다       튜브로                왜냐하면        그는  먹을 수 없었기 (때문이다)  제대로     

그는   재채기를 했어야 했다

You may not believe / this sneezing story. 

A man didn’t want / to sneeze, / so / he pinched / his nose / 

with his fingers. Then / he closed / his mouth. 

He didn’t sneeze, / but / he heard / a loud pop. 

His neck hurt / and / he could not speak. 

It was / also painful / to eat. 

He / immediately went / to the doctor. 

The doctor gave / him / some bad news. 

A muscle / in his throat / was broken. 

He stayed / in the hospital / for seven days. 

He had to eat / with a tube / because / he / could not eat / properly. 

He / should have sneezed! 
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David: A librarian said that I couldn’t read in the library.
Tom:   What do you mean, David?
David: She said, “No reading allowed.”
Tom:   She didn’t mean, “No reading allowed.” She meant, “No reading      
          aloud.”
David: That sounds the same to me!

*librarian 사서 

1. 윗글의 David에 대하여 바르게 추론한 것은? 

   ① 도서관의 시설이 마음에 들었다.

   ② 원하는 책을 마음껏 읽을 수 있었다. 

   ③ 사서가 친절하다고 생각했다.

   ④ ‘aloud’를 ‘allowed’로 잘못 알아들었다.

   ⑤ 도서관이 너무 시끄러워서 책을 읽을 수 없었다.

2. “No reading allowed.”와 “No reading aloud.”를 각각 우리말로 옮기시오.

   A) No reading allowed. →   
   B) No reading aloud.     →  

정답과 해설 p. 20

17 이상한 도서관? 

          사서가 말했다               ~이라고   나는 읽을 수 없다(고)   도서관에서 

          그녀는 말했다     안 됨   독서가         허용된

           그녀는 의미하지 않았다        안 됨   독서가         허용된 

          그녀는 의미했다      안 됨   독서가          큰소리로 

 

David: A librarian said / that / I couldn’t read / in the library.

Tom:   What / do you mean, / David?

David: She said, / “No / reading / allowed.”

Tom:   She didn’t mean, / “No / reading / allowed.” 

         She meant, / “No / reading / aloud.”

David: That sounds / the same / to me!

영어는 알고 보면 쉬운 과목이야.

영어는 말이니까. 

말이 어려우면 어떻게 살겠니?

직독직해하면 영어가 진짜 쉬워.

mean 말하려 하다, 의도하다(mean-meant)
sound ~처럼 들리다, 소리가 나다 
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Hurricane hunters are weather scientists. They fly into a hurricane in an 
airplane. They want to study the hurricane. What kind of information do 
these weather scientists want? They need to know where the hurricane is 
going. They use many instruments to get information. If it starts moving 
towards land, they send out warnings. Then, people can move out of the 
way before the hurricane hits. This information can save many lives. 

1. Why are hurricane hunters important?
   
   → Because they                                           .

   ① are able to stop hurricanes
   ② know how to fly airplanes
   ③ know how to use many instruments
   ④ warn people when hurricanes are coming 
   ⑤ are able to forecast the weather 

2. 밑줄 친 it이 가리키는 것을 영어로 쓰시오. 

   → 

정답과 해설 p. 21

18 허리케인을 잡아라 

1. be able to ~할 수 있다  
    how to ~하는 방법   

warn 경고하다   
forecast 예보하다

허리케인을 찾아다니는 사람들은 ~이다  기상 과학자들                 

그들은 날아간다  허리케인 속으로           비행기를 타고                   

그들은 원한다      연구하기를     허리케인을                    

어떤 종류의 정보를                           이 기상 과학자들은 원하는가                                

그들은 필요하다   아는 것이       어디로       허리케인이 가고 있는지를                 

그들은 사용한다   많은 장비들을                 정보를 얻기 위해서              

만약  그것이 시작하(면) 움직이기  육지 쪽으로            그들은 보낸다           경고들을            

그러면      사람들이 움직일 수 있다     비켜서                      ~ 전에       허리케인이 타격을 주기         

이 정보는 구할 수 있다                        많은 목숨들을

Hurricane hunters are / weather scientists. 

They fly / into a hurricane / in an airplane. 

They want / to study / the hurricane. 

What kind of information / do these weather scientists want? 

They need / to know / where / the hurricane is going. 

They use / many instruments / to get information. 

If / it starts / moving / towards land, / they send out / warnings. 

Then, / people can move / out of the way / before / the hurricane hits. 

This information can save / many lives.
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A flying fox is not a fox at all. It is a bat. But its face looks like a fox. A 
flying fox is the biggest bat. Its wings are 6 feet across. This bat likes to 
eat fruit. Sometimes the flying fox is called the “fruit bat.” The flying fox 
uses its eyes and nose to find fruit trees. Then it eats some of the fruit. 
Fruit farmers get angry. They do not like the                      .

*flying fox 큰박쥐  

1. 윗글의 빈칸에 들어갈 말로 가장 적절한 것은? 

   ① big bird     ② tree     ③ flying fox    ④ fruit     ⑤ nose   

2. flying fox에 대한 윗글의 내용과 일치하지 않는 것은?

   ① 얼굴이 여우처럼 생겼다.			 

   ② 박쥐 중에서 몸집이 가장 크다.

   ③ 날개 폭이 6피트이다.  			 

   ④ 과일을 좋아한다.

   ⑤ 눈은 멀었지만 귀가 발달했다. 

정답과 해설 p. 22

19 농부가 미워하는 박쥐

큰박쥐는  사용한다                그의 눈과 코를                찾기 위하여  과일 나무들을 

A flying fox is not / a fox / at all. It is / a bat. 

But / its face looks / like a fox. 

A flying fox is / the biggest bat. 

Its wings are / 6 feet across. 

This bat likes / to eat fruit. 

Sometimes / the flying fox / is called / the “fruit bat.” 

The flying fox uses / its eyes and nose / to find / fruit trees. 

Then / it eats / some of the fruit. Fruit farmers / get angry. 

They do not like / the                      .

아직은 끊어 읽기가 어색하지?

하지만 곧 익숙해져.

끊어 읽는 데 익숙해지면 아무리 긴 문장도 겁이 안 나.

not ~ at all 전혀, 조금도 ~아니다 

bat 박쥐 
look like ~을 닮다 
biggest 가장 큰 
wing 날개 

across 가로질러, 폭

fruit 과일 
sometimes 때때로 
be called A A라고 불리다 



59

20 고양이가 무서워해요 
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Pet Fears Bath
When it is time to give my cat a bath, she gets ⓐscared. She is scared of 
the water. Can you help me? 

Reply from the Young Teens Editors  
Don’t worry about your cat. All cats are scared of water. Cats don’t like 
water. It’s ⓑnormal.

We talked to a ⓒveterinarian. Cats only need a bath if they have fleas 
or are really dirty or muddy. They don’t         baths because they clean 
themselves very well. They ⓓlick themselves.

Your parents should talk to your vet. They should ask about your cat. The 
vet might say your cat needs a bath. Then the vet will tell you how to do it. 
The vet will give you good ⓔadvice. 

fear 무서워하다  
bath 목욕  
it is time to ~할 때이다   
get scared 겁내다    
Can you ~? ~해 줄래요?  

reply from ~로부터의 답장  

editor 편집자  
worry about ~에 대해서 걱정하다  

normal 정상적인  
veterinarian 수의사(= vet)  

only 오직 ~만 
flea 벼룩  
muddy 진흙투성이인 
clean (깨끗이) 닦다  

themselves 그들 자신  

lick 핥다  
might ~할지도 모른다  
give advice 충고하다 

 

1. bored 지루한  

    excited 신나는  
    happy 행복한  

    surprised 놀란  

    worried 걱정스러운

1. Pet Fears Bath를 쓴 사람의 심경으로 가장 적절한 것은? 

   ① bored 	  ② excited 	   ③ happy	   ④ surprised 	 ⑤ worried 

2. 빈칸에 알맞은 말을 윗글에서 찾아 한 단어로 쓰시오.

   → 

3. 밑줄 친 부분 중, 문맥상 낱말의 풀이가 적절하지 않은 것은?

   ① ⓐ afraid
   ② ⓑ usual
   ③ ⓒ animal doctor
   ④ ⓓ to remove dirt, marks, etc., from (something) 
   ⑤ ⓔ an idea or opinion about what someone should do  

정답과 해설 p. 23
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One way of greeting someone is to smell them. ( ⓐ ) This helps people 
to recognize each other. ( ⓑ ) The Maori in New Zealand have a similar 
custom. ( ⓒ ) They press their faces together and breathe in when they meet 
someone. ( ⓓ ) The Social Issues Research Centre in the United Kingdom 
has studied more examples of the importance of smell for greetings 
around the world. ( ⓔ ) 

1. 윗글의 흐름으로 보아, 주어진 문장이 들어가기에 가장 적절한 곳은?

21 인사를 코로 한다고? 

1. Greenland 그린란드 (북미 북동부의 섬)  

    hold 잡다  
    close 가까이  
    part of ~의 일부 

2. the Onge 옹게 족(인도양의 군도에 거주)  

    India 인도  
    traditional 전통적인  
    Italy 이탈리아 

common 흔한  
cheek 볼  
countries country(나라)의 복수형  

shake one’s hand 악수하다  

Arab 아랍의  
breathe on 입김을 불다  

friendship 우정

한 가지 방법은  누군가에게 인사하는                ~이다   그들을 냄새맡는 것      

이것은 돕는다     사람들이      알아보는 것을         서로를                 

마오리 사람들은   뉴질랜드의                    가지고 있다   비슷한 풍습을                  

그들은 바짝 댄다     그들의 얼굴들을 함께                그리고 숨을 들이마신다    ~일 때      그들이 만날(때)

누군가를         SIRC는                                                             영국의                                           

연구해 왔다          더 많은 예들을              중요성의                          냄새의           인사에서             

전세계                  

One way / of greeting someone / is / to smell them. 

This helps / people / to recognize / each other. 

The Maori / in New Zealand / have / a similar custom. 

They press / their faces together / and breathe in / when / they meet / 

someone. The Social Issues Research Centre / in the United Kingdom / 

has studied / more examples / of the importance / of smell / for greetings / 

around the world. 

   In Greenland holding someone’s face close and breathing in is 
   part of greeting someone. 

   ① ⓐ	 ② ⓑ  	 ③ ⓒ	 ④ ⓓ	 ⑤ ⓔ   

2. 밑줄 친 examples에 어울리지 않는 것은? (2개)

   ① The Onge people do not ask “How are you?” but “How is your 
      nose?”
   ② In India, the traditional greeting was to smell someone’s head. 
   ③ In Italy, it is common to greet someone with a kiss on both 
      their cheeks. 
   ④ In many countries, people smell their hands after shaking 
      someone’s hand.
   ⑤ When Arab people talk, they breathe on someone to show 
      friendship. 

정답과 해설 p. 24
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Some fish use their mouths to take care of their babies. These fish keep 
their eggs in their mouths. That way, other sea animals can’t eat the eggs. 
Soon the eggs hatch. The baby fish swim out of their mother or father’s 
mouth. But if a big fish goes after the baby fish, the mother or father fish 
opens its mouth wide again. The baby fish swim back inside. They stay 
there until they come out safely.

*hatch 부화하다

1. 윗글에 나오는 fish가 알이나 새끼를 입안에 두는 이유는?

   ① 새끼가 놀기에 적당해서		   ② 입안의 찌꺼기를 없애 줘서

   ③ 적으로부터 새끼를 보호하려고 	  ④ 온도가 새끼에게 적당해서

   ⑤ 이물질이 못 들어오게 하려고

 

2. 윗글의 요지를 가장 잘 나타낸 것은?

   ① Some fish use their mouths to take care of their babies. 
   ② Some fish keep their eggs in their mouths.
   ③ That way, other sea animals can’t eat the eggs.
   ④ The baby fish swim out of their mother or father’s mouth.
   ⑤ The baby fish stay there until they come out safely.

정답과 해설 p. 26

22 아빠 입속에 숨었어

어떤 물고기는 사용한다  그들의 입을           돌보기 위하여            그들의 새끼들을                                                                                                                             

이 물고기들은 둔다         그들의 알들을     입안에                        

      

  

새끼 물고기는 헤엄친다            엄마나 아빠의 입 밖으로                                                                                                                                       

하지만  만약  큰 물고기가 간다(면)      새끼 물고기를 따라서              엄마나 아빠 물고기는   

벌린다      그 입을            넓게       다시                              

그들은 머무른다  그곳에    ~할 때까지   그들이 밖으로 나올 (때까지)  안전하게  

Some fish use / their mouths / to take care of / their babies. 

These fish keep / their eggs / in their mouths. 

That way, / other sea animals / can’t eat / the eggs. 

Soon / the eggs hatch. 

The baby fish swim / out of their mother or father’s mouth. 

But / if / a big fish goes / after the baby fish, / the mother or father fish / 

opens / its mouth / wide / again. 

The baby fish / swim back / inside. 

They stay / there / until / they come out / safely.

way 방법 
soon 곧, 머지않아 

inside 내부에 

영어는 어렵다?

천만에! 영어를 어렵게 배웠을 뿐이야.

직독직해하면 영어가 쉬워져.
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Many years ago in Europe, each guest brought a small cake to a wedding. 
The new husband and wife had to kiss each other over each cake. 
Sometimes they had to kiss more than a hundred times. It took a lot of 
time. Then a clever couple had a good idea. They told the guests not to 
bring small cakes. They made one large cake. They kissed over the large 
cake and then cut it into many small pieces. It was very successful and 
every other couple followed it. This gave us our big wedding cakes of 
today.

1. 윗글은 wedding cake의 무엇에 관한 글인가? 

   ① 유래  	 ② 종류 	 ③ 가치	 ④ 재료 	 ⑤ 인기

2. 밑줄 친 a good idea가 가리키는 것을 우리말로 쓰시오. 

   → 

정답과 해설 p. 26

23 웨딩 케이크 앞에서 키스를

오래전에                      유럽에서             손님들이 각자 가져왔다            작은 케이크를        

결혼식에

새 남편과 아내는                                    키스해야 했다         서로에게             각 케이크 위에서           

가끔                   그들은 키스해야 했다       ~ 넘게             백 번                             

(시간이) 걸렸다    많은 시간이      

그들은 말했다    손님들에게         가져오지 말라고      작은 케이크들을       

그들은 키스했다     큰 케이크 위에서                  그리고 나서 잘랐다   그것을  

많은 작은 조각들로 

그것은 ~이었다  매우 성공적인        그리고 다른 모든 커플이 따랐다                        그것을  

Many years ago / in Europe, / each guest brought / a small cake / 

to a wedding. 

The new husband and wife / had to kiss / each other / over each cake. 

Sometimes / they had to kiss / more than / a hundred times. 

It took / a lot of time. Then / a clever couple had / a good idea. 

They told / the guests / not to bring / small cakes. 

They made / one large cake. 

They kissed / over the large cake / and then cut / it / 

into many small pieces. 

It was / very successful / and every other couple followed / it. 

This gave / us / our big wedding cakes / of today.
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Do you ever wonder about the stars? In some ways, stars are like people. 
They are born. They grow old. And they die. A star is born from dust and 
gas. Slowly the dust and gas make a ball. The ball gets very hot. Then it 
starts to give off light. The young star grows into a giant. Millions of years 
go by. The older star begins to get small again.            its light goes out. 
The star’s life is over.

1. 윗글의 제목으로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① The Life of the Stars 
   ② A Star from Dust and Gas
   ③ From Young Stars to Old Stars
   ④ The Brightness of the Star’s Light
   ⑤ History of the Earth and Stars

2. 윗글의 빈칸에 들어갈 말로 가장 적절한 것은? 

   ① However 			   ② Instead
   ③ Therefore   			   ④ At last
   ⑤ For example

정답과 해설 p. 27

24 별도 나이를 먹는다? 

   

        

   

별은 ~이다     태어난    먼지와 가스로부터 

서서히         그 먼지와 가스는            만든다      구형을            

그다음에  그것은 시작한다   발산하기       빛을      

                     

    

더 나이 든 별은 시작한다           작아지기              다시         

                                                   별의 일생은 ~이다          끝난 

Do you ever wonder / about the stars? 

In some ways, / stars are / like people. 

They are / born. They grow / old. And / they die. 

A star is / born / from dust and gas. 

Slowly / the dust and gas / make / a ball. The ball gets / very hot. 

Then / it starts / to give off / light. 

The young star grows / into a giant. 

Millions of years / go by. 

The older star begins / to get small / again. 

           / its light / goes out. The star’s life is / over.

2. however 그러나  
    instead 대신에   

therefore 그러므로   
for example 예를 들어  
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Mrs. Thompson was driving her car. She looked in the rearview mirror. 
A blue car was behind her. A man was driving the car. The man in the car 
waved at Mrs. Thompson. He was saying something, but Mrs. Thompson 
couldn’t hear him. The man kept following her. Mrs. Thompson was 
afraid of him. She drove to the police station. The man followed her. She 
arrived at the police station and stopped her car. A police officer came to 
her car. The police officer said, “There’s a cat on the top of your car!” Mrs. 
Thompson’s cat was on the top of her car. The cat looked very afraid. Now 
she understood why the man in the blue car kept following her. 

*rearview mirror (자동차의) 백미러, 후사경 

1. 이 일을 겪고 난 뒤 Mrs. Thompson이 느낄 심경으로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① angry and sad				    ② sad and disappointed
   ③ embarrassed and sorry 		  ④ nervous but happy
   ⑤ shocked but happy

2. 밑줄 친 something이 의미하는 바로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① Your car is very good.
   ② You are driving a car so fast.
   ③ I’m waving to say hello to you.
   ④ I want to have a date with you.
   ⑤ There’s a cat on the top of your car.
 

25 수상한 자동차가 따라와요

behind 뒤에 
wave 손을 흔들다 

keep -ing 계속해서 ~하다 

follow 따르다  
afraid 두려워하는, 겁내는  
police station 경찰서 
arrive 도착하다 
police officer 경찰관 
top 꼭대기

1. disappointed 실망한 
    embarrassed 당황한 
    nervous 불안한 
    shocked 놀란, 충격 받은 
2. fast 빠르게 
    say hello to ~에게 안부인사하다 
    have a date with ~와 데이트하다 

3. thief 도둑 
    find 찾다, 발견하다(find-found)

3. Mrs. Thompson drove to the police station because she                          .

   ① was afraid of the man     		
   ② wanted to know about the man
   ③ thought the man was a thief  	
   ④ didn’t know where her cat was
   ⑤ found her car had some problems

정답과 해설 p. 28

영어 성적이 안 오른다구? 공부한 시간이 아깝다구?

하지만 직독직해해 봐.

영어가 쉬워지니 점수가 오를 수밖에!
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Do you get the hiccups? Why do you get them? There are many ideas 
about hiccups. For example, some people believe you got the hiccups 
because someone is thinking about you. Other people believe you got the 
hiccups because someone is saying bad things about you. They say the 
only way to stop your hiccups is to think of the person who is talking 
about you! These are theories not science. They are just fun ideas. But 
what does cause a hiccup? 

1. 윗글의 밑줄 친 말과 바꿔 쓸 수 있는 것은?

   ① At first	 	 	  ② In fact			   ③ For instance 
   ④ In addition		   ⑤ As a result

2. 윗글 다음에 이어질 내용으로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① 딸꾹질의 실제 원인  

   ② 딸꾹질의 위험 

   ③ 딸꾹질이 보내는 신호

   ④ 딸꾹질에 관한 속설 

   ⑤ 딸꾹질을 멈추는 법

                                                 정답과 해설 p. 30

26 딸꾹! 누가 내 생각을 하나?

1. at first 처음에   
    in fact 사실  
    for instance 예를 들어  

in addition 게다가    
as a result 결과적으로 

당신은 하는가       딸꾹질들을           왜 당신은 하는가            그것들을   

~이 있다          많은 생각들이        딸꾹질들에 대한        

예를 들면                어떤 사람들은 믿는다               당신은 했다   딸꾹질들을            왜냐하면

누군가 생각하고 있기 (때문이다)   당신에 대하여       

다른 사람들은 믿는다               당신은 했다    딸꾹질들을          왜냐하면       누군가 말하고 있기 (때문이다)    

나쁜 것들을         당신에 대하여       

그들은 말한다   유일한 방법            당신의 딸꾹질들을 멈출            ~이다  생각하는 것  사람을       

(~하는 사람)   말하고 있는  당신에 대하여      

이런 것들은 ~이다  가설들      과학이 아니라      그것들은 ~이다   단지 재미있는 생각들     

그러나  무엇이 일으키는가             딸꾹질을

Do you get / the hiccups? Why do you get / them? 

There are / many ideas / about hiccups. 

For example, / some people believe / you got / the hiccups / because / 

someone is thinking / about you. 

Other people believe / you got / the hiccups / because / someone is saying / 

bad things / about you. 

They say / the only way / to stop your hiccups / is / to think / of the person / 

who / is talking / about you! 

These are / theories / not science. They are / just fun ideas. 

But / what does cause / a hiccup?
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Every night Tom heard two noises. The man in the room upstairs dropped 
one shoe on the floor. Then he dropped the other one. Every night Tom 
went to sleep after the second noise. Last night, as usual, Tom heard the 
first noise. He waited and waited. Nothing else happened. He couldn’t 
sleep. At last he went to the room upstairs. “Please drop your other shoe 
on the floor,” he said. 

1. Every night Tom could go to sleep after                       .

   ① he heard two noises
   ② he turned off lights
   ③ the man upstairs went to sleep
   ④ he talked with the man upstairs
   ⑤ he dropped one shoe on the floor

2. Last night Tom could not sleep because he waited long for                     .

   ① big noises
   ② the first shoe
   ③ the second noise 
   ④ the man upstairs
   ⑤ music from upstairs

정답과 해설 p. 30

27 위층에서 나는 소리 

                                                                                      

그 남자는        방 안에 있는          위층에 위치한  떨어뜨렸다    신발 한 쪽을    바닥 위에 

Every night / Tom heard / two noises. 

The man / in the room / upstairs / dropped / one shoe / on the floor. 

Then / he dropped / the other one. 

Every night / Tom went to sleep / after the second noise. 

Last night, / as usual, / Tom heard / the first noise. 

He waited / and waited. 

Nothing else / happened. He couldn’t sleep. 

At last / he went / to the room upstairs. 

“Please / drop / your other shoe / on the floor,” / he said. 

재미있는 글이지?

하지만 문법을 자꾸 따지면 이 글이 재미있을까?

영어는 쭉쭉 읽어야 재미있어.

every night 매일 밤 

hear 듣다(hear-heard) 
noise 소음 
the other 나머지 다른 하나(둘 중에 남

은 하나를 가리킴: one, the other) 
go to sleep 잠자리에 들다 
second 두 번째의, 둘째의 

last night 지난밤 
as usual 보통 때처럼 

wait 기다리다 
nothing 아무것도 아님, 무 

else 이외에 
happen 발생하다 
please 제발, 부디

1. turn off 끄다   
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Baby elephants get extra care. A baby elephant’s mother looks after it. The 
baby is also looked after by an aunt. Lions and tigers won’t go after a fully 
grown elephant. But they will go after a baby. When the elephants walk 
along a trail, the mother elephant goes first. The aunt comes last. And the 
baby is in the middle. The baby elephant walks between the mother and 
the aunt so that lions and tigers can’t get to it.

1. 밑줄 친 the baby is in the middle의 이유로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① 맹수들이 접근하지 못하게 하려고 

   ② 무리에서 뒤쳐지지 못하게 하려고

   ③ 힘들 때 엄마 젖을 먹이려고

   ④ 도중에 길을 잃어버리지 않게 하려고

   ⑤ 어미들 틈에서 놀게 하려고

2. 윗글의 주된 내용을 가장 잘 나타낸 것은?

   ① Baby elephants get extra care.
   ② A mother elephant looks after her baby.
   ③ The baby is also looked after by an aunt.
   ④ Lions and tigers will go after a baby elephant.
   ⑤ The baby elephant walks between the mother and the aunt.

정답과 해설 p. 32

28 새끼 코끼리는 소중해! 

새끼는             또한 보살핌을 받는다            아주머니에 의해서 

~일 때      코끼리들이 걸을 (때)            길을 따라서             어미 코끼리는 간다                           먼저

    

새끼 코끼리는 걸어간다                     어미와 아주머니 사이로                                   ~하도록        

사자와 호랑이가 다가갈 수 없(도록)     그것에 

Baby elephants get / extra care. 

A baby elephant’s mother / looks after / it. 

The baby / is also looked after / by an aunt. 

Lions and tigers won’t go after / a fully grown elephant. 

But / they will go after / a baby. 

When / the elephants walk / along a trail, / the mother elephant goes / first. 

The aunt comes / last. And / the baby is / in the middle. 

The baby elephant walks / between the mother and the aunt / so that / 

lions and tigers can’t get / to it.

elephant 코끼리 
extra 별도의, 여분의 
care 보살핌 
look after 돌보다(be looked after 돌봄을 받다) 

go after 추격하다, 뒤쫓다

fully grown 완전히 다 자란  
last 마지막에 
in the middle 중간에 
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ⓐSome people think that dreams can tell about the future. ⓑHowever, 
there are some differences about reading a dream. ⓒIn America, people 
say, if you dream about a dog, you will be lucky. ⓓBut if you dream about 
a cat, you will be unlucky. ⓔIn Korea, pig dreams and fire dreams are 
lucky dreams. But if you see clouds in your dream, you will have worries 
in your mind. 

1. 윗글의 ⓐ~ⓔ 중, 요지가 가장 잘 나타난 문장은?

   ① ⓐ		  ② ⓑ  	  ③ ⓒ		  ④ ⓓ		  ⑤ ⓔ   

2. 꿈에 관한 윗글의 내용과 일치하는 것은?

   ① 미래에 대해 말해 준다.

   ② 세계적으로 해몽 책이 많이 나와 있다.

   ③ 미국인에게 돼지 꿈은 길몽이다.

   ④ 한국인에게 개가 나오는 꿈은 흉몽이다.

   ⑤ 한국인들은 꿈에 구름을 보면 근심이 생긴다고 생각한다. 

정답과 해설 p. 33

29 돼지 꿈을 꾸었어 

어떤 사람들은 생각한다          ~이라고   꿈들이   말해 줄 수 있다(고)   미래에 관하여

미국에서               사람들은 말한다     만약   당신이 꿈을 꾼다(면)   개에 관하여       당신은 ~일 것이다

운이 좋은

Some people think / that / dreams can tell / about the future. 

However, / there are / some differences / about reading a dream. 

In America, / people say, / if / you dream / about a dog, / you will be / 

lucky. 

But / if / you dream / about a cat, / you will be / unlucky. 

In Korea, / pig dreams and fire dreams are / lucky dreams. 

But / if / you see / clouds / in your dream, / you will have / worries / 

in your mind. 

however 하지만 
difference 차이 
read 읽다, 읽고 이해하다   
unlucky 불운의 

cloud 구름 
worry 걱정, 걱정거리 
mind 마음

직독직해에서 가장 중요한 것은 ‘습관’을 들이는 거야.

머리로만 생각하지 말고, 손으로 쓰면서 연습을 해야 해.
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I love to dance. In fact, I have danced most of my life. ( ⓐ ) I started 
dancing at the age of five. ( ⓑ ) Mom and Dad put me in a jazz dance class 
at the local community center. ( ⓒ ) They did not want to at first. ( ⓓ ) But 
I begged them every day for a month so they agreed. ( ⓔ ) I told them I 
would work hard. 

I kept my promise.                        I was not a good dancer in the 
beginning. Sometimes I was unhappy and worried because I was tired or 
hurt. But I never gave up my dream. Now at 25, I still dance with joy, and 
I will never stop dancing. When I dance, I feel free. I have no troubles. 

30 춤출 때 제일 행복해요 

dance 춤추다; 춤, 댄스    
at the age of ~의 나이에  
put 넣다(put-put)  
jazz 재즈 
local 지역의

community center 
시민 회관, 지역 문화 센터   
beg 애원하다  
every day 날마다  
for ~ 동안  

month 달, 개월  
agree 동의하다   
work 노력하다  
keep one’s promise 약
속을 지키다 
in the beginning 맨 처

음에 
sometimes 때때로  
worried 걱정하는    
tired 지친  

never 결코 ~ 않다

give up 포기하다  
still 아직(도)  
with joy 기쁘게  
stop 멈추다    
free 자유로운  
trouble 걱정거리, 문제 

1. young 어린  
2. be good at ~을 잘하다  
    come true 실현되다  
    against ~에 반대하여,    

    ~에  맞서  
    wish 바람, 소망  
    once 한때, 언젠가   
    again 다시

1. 윗글의 ⓐ~ⓔ 중 주어진 문장이 들어가기에 가장 적절한 곳은? 

   They thought I was too young.

 
  ① ⓐ		  ② ⓑ 		 ③ ⓒ		  ④ ⓓ 		 ⑤ ⓔ   

2. 글쓴이에 대한 설명으로 가장 적절한 것은? 

   ① She was good at dancing when she started.
   ② She made her dream come true. 
   ③ She didn’t keep her promise to her parents. 
   ④ She danced against her parents’ wishes.
   ⑤ She stopped dancing once but then started again. 

3. 윗글의 빈칸에 들어갈 말로 가장 적절한 것은? 

   ① And I’m here.
   ② And it’s time to go.
   ③ But it was not easy. 
   ④ But they didn’t.
   ⑤ Because I said I would.

정답과 해설 p. 34
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Space is big because it is infinite. That means it never ends. The reason 
space doesn’t end is because it is always getting bigger. It’s like counting 
numbers. No matter how high you go, you can always go higher.

Scientists think the universe began about 14 billion years ago. Every single 
thing in the universe was crowded into a small space. Suddenly, there 
was a big explosion of energy! This was the “big bang.” Everything flew 
around in every direction. After a while, it grew into the universe. And it’s 
still growing! 

1. 윗글의 제목으로 가장 적절한 것은? 

   ① How Big Is the Universe? 
   ② How Did the Universe Begin? 
   ③ What Does the Universe Look Like? 
   ④ Changes in Thinking About the Universe 
   ⑤ The Beginning and the End of the Universe 

2. 밑줄 친 big bang이 의미하는 것을 윗글에서 찾아 쓰시오. 

   → 

정답과 해설 p. 35

31 빅뱅이 뭐지? 

우주는 크다           왜냐하면       그것이 무한하기 (때문이다)  그것은 의미한다  (그것이) 절대 끝나지 않는다는 것을   

이유는                우주가 끝나지 않는              ~ 이다   왜냐하면   그것이 항상 점점 더 커지고 있기 (때문)

그것은 ~이다   수를 세는 것과 같은         

아무리 높이                          여러분이 가더라도  여러분은 항상 더 높이 갈 수 있다                                     

과학자들은 생각한다      우주가 시작됐다(고)               약 140억 년 전에                                   

(마지막 단 하나까지) 모든 것이  우주의                        밀집되어 있었다          하나의 작은 공간 속으로

갑자기             있었다             큰 폭발이                     에너지의

이것은 ~이었다  ‘빅뱅’                 

모든 것이 날아다녔다                     사방으로                                              

얼마 뒤에                 그것은 커졌다   우주로                       

그리고   그것은 아직도 커지고 있다

Space is big / because / it is infinite. That means / it never ends. 

The reason / space doesn’t end / is / because / it is always getting bigger. 

It’s / like counting numbers. 

No matter how high / you go, / you can always go higher. 

Scientists think / the universe began / about 14 billion years ago. 

Every single thing / in the universe / was crowded / into a small space. 

Suddenly, / there was / a big explosion / of energy! 

This was / the “big bang.” 

Everything flew around / in every direction. 

After a while, / it grew / into the universe. 

And / it’s still growing!

내용이 좀 딱딱하지?

문장도 길고.

그래도 이렇게 끊어 읽으니까 읽을 만하지?
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Have you ever heard of Portuguese water dogs? Years ago, many fishing 
boats carried a Portuguese water dog. If someone fell into the water, the 
dog would jump in and save the person. The water dog also helped with 
the fishing. It chased schools of fish into the fishing nets. The water dog 
was a kind of telephone at sea, too. It carried messages from boat to boat.

*Portuguese water dog 포르투갈 워터 도그 

1. 윗글의 제목으로 가장 적절한 것은? 

   ① Saving People in the Water 
   ② Help from the Water Dog
   ③ What Can Fishing Boats Do?  
   ④ The Water Dog Carrying Messages 
   ⑤ How To Fish in the Water

2. Portuguese water dogs에 관한 윗글의 내용과 일치하지 않는 것은?

   ① 물에 빠진 사람을 구조했다.	      

   ② 고기를 잡도록 도와주었다.

   ③ 배와 배 사이에 소식을 전했다.	      

   ④ 바다에서 노는 것을 좋아했다. 

   ⑤ 고깃배를 타고 다녔다.

정답과 해설 p. 36

32 개가 사람을 구해?

만약  누군가가 빠지면       물속에                     그 개가         뛰어들 것이다              그리고 구할 (것이다) 

그 사람을

그것은 몰아넣었다  물고기 떼들을         고기잡이 그물 속으로 

Have you ever heard / of Portuguese water dogs? 

Years ago, / many fishing boats / carried / a Portuguese water dog. 

If / someone fell / into the water, / the dog / would jump in / and save / 

the person. 

The water dog / also helped / with the fishing. 

It chased / schools of fish / into the fishing nets. 

The water dog was / a kind of telephone / at sea, / too. 

It carried / messages / from boat / to boat.

Have you ever heard ~? 지금까지 들어 본 적이 있는가? 
fishing boat 고깃배 
carry 데려가다, 나르다 
a kind of 일종의, 한 종류의 
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At one time, there were no women doctors in the United States. Many 
people thought that women should not be doctors. But Elizabeth Blackwell 
did not agree. She wanted to be a doctor. She wanted to help people. 
Elizabeth Blackwell studied hard. 

In 1849, she became the first woman doctor in the United States. Dr. 
Blackwell spent her time caring for poor people. She also started a school 
to teach other women to be doctors.

1. Elizabeth Blackwell에 대한 윗글의 내용과 일치하지 않는 것은?

   ① 가난한 사람들을 도왔다.	    	    ② 의사가 되려고 최선을 다했다.

   ③ 미국 최초의 여의사가 되었다.	    ④ 무료 병원을 설립하였다. 

   ⑤ 후진 양성에 힘을 기울였다.

2. 밑줄 친 Elizabeth Blackwell did not agree.의 의미를 다음 문장으로 

   나타낼 때 빈칸에 들어갈 말로 적절한 것은?

   → Elizabeth Blackwell thought that women could                  .

   ① study hard       			     ② be doctors
   ③ start a school    		     ④ help poor people
   ⑤ teach other women

정답과 해설 p. 37

33 미국에 여성 의사가 없었다!

많은 사람들은 생각했다              ~이라고  여성은       의사가 되어서는 안 된다(고)                                                                                                                               

1849년에       그녀는 되었다        최초의 여의사가                          미국에서 

                                                                                                                             

At one time, / there were / no women doctors / in the United States. 

Many people thought / that / women / should not be doctors. 

But / Elizabeth Blackwell / did not agree. 

She wanted / to be a doctor. She wanted / to help people. 

Elizabeth Blackwell studied / hard. 

In 1849, / she became / the first woman doctor / in the United States. 

Dr. Blackwell spent / her time / caring for / poor people. 

She also started / a school / to teach / other women / to be doctors.

at one time 한때에

women woman(여자)의 복수형 

the United States 미합중국  
agree 동의하다 
study 공부하다(study-studied) 
hard 열심히 

spend 보내다(spend-spent) 
care for 돌보다 
poor 가난한 
start 시작하다 
teach 가르치다(teach-taught)
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Tom was waiting for a bus. He held his hands about four inches apart. He 
got on the bus. When the driver asked for his fare, ⓐhe told him to take 
the money out of his coat pocket. The driver did as he said and drove on. 
Tom walked to the back of the bus and sat down. He still held his hands in 
the same position. A lady turned to him and asked, “Were you wounded in 
the war?” “No, I wasn’t,” he replied. “I’m on my way to a hardware store 
and I plan to buy a piece of pipe ⓑthis long.”

1. 밑줄 친 ⓐhe told him ... his coat pocket의 이유로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① 돈을 내기 귀찮아서		   ② 차비를 내기 싫어서

   ③ 차비가 없어서			    ④ 두 손을 벌리고 있어서 

   ⑤ 전쟁 중에 손을 다쳐서

2. 밑줄 친 ⓑthis long의 길이를 구체적으로 쓰시오.

→ 

3. 윗글의 내용과 일치하지 않는 것은?

   ① Tom was never wounded in the war.
   ② Tom bought a piece of pipe at the store. 
   ③ Tom still held his hands apart in the bus.
   ④ Tom was going to a hardware store by bus.
   ⑤ The driver took Tom’s fare from his pocket.
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34 이상한 승객 

           

그는 고정시켰다  그의 손을     약 4인치                         벌린 채로                

                      

운전사는 했다             ~대로  그가 말한 (대로)   그리고 계속 운전했다 

                                                             

                            

한 부인이 향했다        그에게        그리고 물었다         당신은 부상당했나요              전쟁에서

        

 나는 ~입니다  가는 중        철물점으로                           그리고  나는 계획하고 있습니다  사려고  

한 조각의 파이프를       이만큼 길이의 

Tom was waiting / for a bus. 

He held / his hands / about four inches / apart. He got on the bus. 

When / the driver asked for / his fare, / he told / him / to take the money / 

out of his coat pocket. 

The driver did / as / he said / and drove on. 

Tom walked / to the back / of the bus / and sat down. 

He still held / his hands / in the same position. 

A lady turned / to him / and asked, / “Were you wounded / in the war?” 

“No, / I wasn’t,” / he replied. 

“I’m / on my way / to a hardware store / and / I plan / to buy / 

a piece of pipe / this long.” 

wait 기다리다 
get on 탑승하다(get-got) 
driver 운전사 
ask for 요구하다 
fare 요금 
coat 상의, 외투 

pocket 주머니  
back 뒤쪽 
sit 앉다(sit-sat) 
position 위치 
reply 응답하다 

재미있지?

글의 흐름에 따라 쭉쭉 읽어서 

더 재미있는 거야.
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When the class begins, students wave their wands in the air. One boy 
makes a coin (A) disappear / to disappear . Another boy pulls a golf ball 
from a hat. A few students are throwing things in the air.  

Can’t the teacher control the students? Yes, he can. In fact, the students are 
following the teacher’s instructions. This is not an ordinary school. The 
College of Magic in Cape Town, South Africa teaches children age 10 and 
(B) old / older  how to do magic.

David Gore opened the College of Magic 26 years ago. He wanted to help 
local children. They needed (C) a little / little  magic in their lives. Many 
of the students are poor. They live in one-room houses. They are often 
hungry. Gore said that magic “gives children the courage to dream.” 

*wand (마술사의) 지팡이  

1. 윗글을 요약한 다음 문장의 빈칸 (A)와 (B)에 들어갈 말로 가장 적절한 것은? 

35 학교 같지 않은 학교  

wave 흔들다  
in the air 공중에  
coin 동전  
disappear 사라지다   
pull 끌다, 빼내다

a few 약간의, 몇몇의  

throw 던지다  
control 통제하다, 제어하다   
instructions 지시  

ordinary 평범한, 보통의  
college 대학, 전문학교  
Cape Town 케이프타운(남아프리카

공화국의 도시) 
local 지역의 
a little 작은  
lives life(삶, 생활)의 복수형     
one-room house 단칸집   
courage 용기  

1. bright 밝은, 영리한  
    brave 용감한  
    survive 살아남다  
    freedom 자유  

   → David Gore started the school because he wanted to help 
             (A)      children by giving them      (B)     .

       (A) 	           (B)
   ① poor       ……    home to stay 
   ② poor       ……   	 the courage to dream
   ③ bright     ……    money to be rich 
   ④ brave      ……    the foods to survive
   ⑤ brave      ……    the freedom to learn

2. 밑줄 친 the class가 의미하는 것은? 

   ① 과학 수업	 		   ② 체육 수업			   ③ 마술 수업     	

   ④ 연극 수업			   ⑤ 음악 수업

3. (A), (B), (C)의 각 네모 안에서 어법에 맞는 표현으로 가장 적절한 것은?

        (A)                           (B)                (C)
   ① disappear        ……    old       ……   little
   ② disappear        ……    older    ……   little  
   ③ disappear        ……    older    ……   a little 
   ④ to disappear    ……    older    ……   little
   ⑤ to disappear    ……    old       ……   a little

정답과 해설 p. 39
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In a large box, which piece of chocolate do you pick? A man has studied 
people s̓ choices. He says they tell us something about the person. Did you 
choose a round piece? You r̓e a person who likes to party. Did you select 
an oval shape? You are a creative person. You like to make things. Picking 
a square shape shows something else. You are honest and truthful. People 
can depend on you. 

1. 윗글의 주제로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① the long history of chocolate
   ② why people like chocolate
   ③ different ways of eating chocolate
   ④ why chocolate is good for your health
   ⑤ what chocolate choices tell us about you 

2. 밑줄 친 they가 가리키는 것을 우리말로 구체적으로 쓰시오. 

   → 

정답과 해설 p. 41

36 초콜릿을 골라 보세요

큰 상자에서                어떤 조각의 초콜릿을                       당신은 고르는가         

한 남자가 연구해 왔다          사람들의 선택들을             

그는 말한다    그것들이 알려 준다  우리에게  무엇인가를  사람에 대해서                      

당신은 선택했는가           둥근 조각을              당신은 ~이다  사람            ~하는    좋아하는  파티하기를

당신은 선택했는가        타원형을                  당신은 ~이다  창의적인 사람                   

당신은 좋아한다   만들기를   물건들을           

고르는 것은   사각형을                    보여 준다   뭔가 다른 것을               

당신은 ~이다  정직하고 진실한                  사람들은 믿을 수 있다            당신을

In a large box, / which piece of chocolate / do you pick? 

A man has studied / people s̓ choices. 

He says / they tell / us / something / about the person. 

Did you choose / a round piece? You r̓e / a person / who / likes / to party. 

Did you select / an oval shape? You are / a creative person. 

You like / to make / things. 

Picking / a square shape / shows / something else. 

You are / honest and truthful. People can depend / on you. 

영어가 조금씩 싫어진 이유?

문법을 너무 따졌기 때문이야.

글의 ‘내용’을 생각하며 쭉쭉 읽으면 재미있는데 말이야.
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Some kids are afraid to read out loud. They are afraid that they will 
make a mistake or that someone will laugh at them. But in one library, 
kids are not afraid of making mistakes when they read aloud. At the Salt 
Lake Library in Utah, kids read to dogs. The dogs like it. The animals 
do not care if the readers make a mistake. And they do not mind hearing 
the same story over and over. And the kids think that it is fun to read to 
a                 .

1. 윗글의 빈칸에 들어갈 말로 적절한 것을 쓰시오.

   →       

2. When kids read aloud to dogs, they feel that                           .

   ① nobody will laugh at them
   ② dogs are good teachers for them
   ③ the stories are very easy to dogs
   ④ they want to play around with dogs 
   ⑤ dogs can make a mistake, too
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37 개에게 책을 읽어 줘?

그들은 두려워한다          ~이라고  그들이 만들(거라고)     실수를             또는   ~라는 것을  

누군가가 비웃을 (것이라는 것을)  그들을

하지만   한 도서관에서               어린이들은 두려워하지 않는다    실수하는 것을                          ~할 때       

그들이 읽을 (때)  큰소리로

그 동물들은 신경 쓰지 않는다           혹시  읽는 사람들이 실수를 하는지 (안 하는지를)  

그리고    어린이들은 생각한다    ~이라고   재미있다(고)  읽어 주는 것이                 에게

Some kids are / afraid / to read out / loud. 

They are afraid / that / they will make / a mistake / or / that / 

someone will laugh / at them. 

But / in one library, / kids are not afraid / of making mistakes / when / 

they read / aloud. 

At the Salt Lake Library / in Utah, / kids read / to dogs. 

The dogs like it. 

The animals do not care / if / the readers make a mistake. 

And / they do not mind / hearing / the same story / over and over. 

And / the kids think / that / it is fun / to read / to a               .

  

kid 어린이 
read out 소리내어 읽다 
loud 크게 
mind 염두에 두다, 싫어하다  
over and over 반복해서 

2. nobody 아무도 ~않다 (= no one)   
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John worked in an office in a small town. One day his boss said to him, 
“John, will you go to an office in London and see Mr. Green? Here’s the 
address.” John went to London by train. He thought, “The office isn’t far 
from the station. I’ll find it easily.” But after an hour he was still looking 
for it. So he stopped and asked an old woman. She said, “Walk two blocks 
along this street, and turn right. You’ll find it on your left.” John went and 
found it. 

A few days later he went to London, but again he did not find the office. 
So he asked someone the way. It was the same old woman! She was very 
surprised and said, “Are you still looking for that                  ?”

1. 윗글의 빈칸에 들어갈 말로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① man          ② city          ③ place           ④ station             ⑤ street

2. 다음 지도에서 남자가 찾아가는 곳을 고르시오. 

                                 ①                          ②

 

                                 ③                        ④
 
                                                                 ⑤
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38 런던에서 만난 노부인

              

어느 날          그의 사장이  말했다  그에게           존           자네 가겠나          사무실로                

런던에 있는        그리고 그린 씨를 보겠나        여기에 있어  주소가  

       

그는 생각했다           사무실은 멀지 않다               역으로부터                   나는 찾을 것이다  그것을  쉽게 

하지만  한 시간 후              그는 여전히 찾고 있었다                그것을      

              

그녀는 말했다     걸어가세요  두 구역을          이 길을 따라                   그리고 오른쪽으로 돌아가세요  

당신은 그것을 발견할 것입니다  당신의 왼쪽 편에서

John worked / in an office / in a small town. 

One day / his boss said / to him, / “John, / will you go / to an office / 

in London / and see Mr. Green? Here’s / the address.” 

John went / to London / by train. 

He thought, / “The office isn’t far / from the station. I’ll find / it / easily.” 

But / after an hour / he was still looking for / it. 

So / he stopped / and asked an old woman. 

She said, / “Walk / two blocks / along this street, / and turn right. 

You’ll find it / on your left.” 

John went / and found it. 

A few days later / he went / to London, / but / again / he did not find / 

the office. So / he asked / someone / the way. 

It was / the same old woman! 

She was very surprised / and said, / “Are you still looking for / that           ?”

office 사무실 
by train 기차 편으로 
later 후에 
surprised 깜짝 놀란

1. city 도시  



112   쭉쭉 읽어라 113

Do you know how a moth is different from a butterfly? A butterfly has 
knobs on its antenna. A butterfly is active during the daytime. A butterfly 
has brighter colors than a moth. A butterfly folds its wings upward when 
it rests. A butterfly has a smooth body while a moth may have a hairy one. 
Although almost everyone likes the butterfly, many people don’t like the 
moth.

*moth 나방  knob 둥근 마디 

1. 윗글의 주제를 나타낸 문장으로 가장 적절한 것은?

   ① Many people don’t like the moth.
   ② A moth is different from a butterfly.
   ③ A butterfly has knobs on its antenna.
   ④ A butterfly has brighter colors than a moth.
   ⑤ A butterfly has a smooth body, and a moth has a hairy one.

2. 윗글의 내용과 일치하지 않는 것은?

   ① 나비는 더듬이 끝에 둥근 마디가 있다.	  ② 나비는 낮에 활동한다.

   ③ 나비는 나방보다 밝은 색을 띤다.	   	  ④ 나비는 쉴 때 날개를 위로 접는다.

   ⑤ 나비와 나방의 몸통은 털이 많다. 
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39 비슷해 보이지?

당신은 아는가            어떻게    나방이        다른지를             나비와           

            

나비는 접는다                 그것의 날개들을  위로           ~일 때    그것이 쉴 (때)             

나비는 가진다               매끄러운 몸통을           반면에      나방은 가지고 있을 것이다   털이 난 것을           

Do you know / how / a moth / is different / from a butterfly? 

A butterfly has / knobs / on its antenna. 

A butterfly is active / during  the daytime. 

A butterfly has / brighter colors / than a moth. 

A butterfly folds / its wings / upward / when / it rests. 

A butterfly has / a smooth body / while / a moth may have / a hairy one. 

Although / almost everyone likes / the butterfly, / many people don’t like / 

the moth.

antenna 안테나 
active 활동적인, 활동하는 
during ~ 동안에 
daytime 낮 시간 

bright 밝은 
than ~보다 
although 비록 ~할지라도 
almost 거의
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A man was really overweight, so his doctor told ⓐhim to lose weight. He 
told him a special diet to follow.
“I want you to eat normally for 2 days, then skip a day, and then eat 
normally for two days. Follow this routine for four weeks. Come and see 
me in four weeks. You will be 5 pounds lighter,” the doctor said.

When the man returned, ⓑhe shocked the doctor. He was 20 pounds 
lighter.
“That s̓ amazing!” the doctor said, “Did 
ⓒyou follow my instructions?”
The man said, “Yes. But I thought ⓓI was 
going to die on the third day.”
“From hunger, you mean?” ⓔhe asked.
“No, from the skipping!” 

1. 밑줄 친 skip a day에 대해 의사가 말한 뜻과 환자인 남자가 이해한 뜻으로 

   가장 적절한 것은? 

       의사가 말한 뜻	                                환자인 남자가 이해한 뜻

   ① 하루 동안 끼니를 거르세요 	 ………    하루 동안 집을 떠나세요 

   ② 하루 동안 끼니를 거르세요 	 ………    하루 동안 줄넘기를 하세요  

   ③ 하루 동안 껑충껑충 뛰세요  	 ………    하루 동안 끼니를 거르세요 

   ④ 하루 동안 집을 떠나세요 	 	 ………    하루 동안 줄넘기를 하세요

   ⑤ 하루 동안 다른 운동을 하세요 	 ………    하루 동안 집을 떠나세요 

40 다이어트 하세요

overweight 과체중의, 비만의  
tell 말하다(tell-told)  
lose weight 살을 빼다  

diet 식습관, 식단  
follow 따르다   
normally 보통으로     
skip 거르다; 껑충껑충 뛰다, 줄넘기하다  
routine 틀에 박힌 일, 일과   
pound 파운드(무게의 단위)  

lighter 더 가벼운    
return 돌아오다, 다시 오다  
shock 깜짝 놀라게 하다  
amazing 놀라운, 굉장한  
instructions 지시  
be going to ~할 것이다    
hunger 배고픔, 굶주림  
mean 의미하다  

2. 밑줄 친 ⓐ~ⓔ 중 가리키는 대상이 다른 것은?  

   ① ⓐ		   ② ⓑ 		   ③ ⓒ		    ④ ⓓ		      ⑤ ⓔ   

3. A man에 대한 윗글의 내용과 일치하는 것은?

   ① 비만이어서 살을 빼고 싶어 했다.

   ② 살을 5파운드 뺐다.

   ③ 의사의 예상보다 살이 더 많이 빠졌다. 

   ④ 의사가 지시한 식단대로 먹었다.

   ⑤ 세 번째 날에 배가 고파서 힘들었다. 
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직독직해하면 읽는 속도가 빨라져.

똑같은 시간에 똑같은 영어를 읽어도

남보다 훨씬 많이 읽을 수 있어.

이번에 꼭 습관을 들이도록 해!






